REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Be it Remembered that the Common Council of the City of Plymouth, Indiana, met in regular
session on June 9, 2025. The meeting was held in the Council Chambers, on the second floor of the
City Building, 124 N. Michigan St., Plymouth, Indiana, and was called to order at 7:48 p.m.

Councilwoman Starr offered prayer, and Mayor Listenberger led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Listenberger presided over Council members Duane Culp, Don Ecker Jr., Kayla
Krathwohl, Randy Longanecker, Shiloh Carothers Milner, Dave Morrow, and Linda Starr, who were
physically present. City Attorney Jeff Houin and Clerk-Treasurer Lynn Gorski were also present.
The public was able to see and hear the meeting through Microsoft Teams and streamed live at

https://www.youtube.com/@CityofPlymouth.

Council members Starr and Longanecker moved and seconded to approve the minutes of the

regular session of the Common Council on May 27, 2025 as presented. The motion carried.

Fund Nayre: Rainy Day
NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS OF PROPOSED ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS on:
Notica i:)hemb,' gl-mnI 10 m& ;axpayefxs ol &rgi‘ry e:: Plynn;uhthlmshal County, Major Bidgel Cltsicafon: -~ Capil OMA,“
ndiana that the propet legal offcers of tha Common Council at thit reguar meet- . 7 Roknburse rant
g laco ol e CouncilChambers ofthe Oy Bulding, 2nd Flocr, 12 R MCRZan | e Bt Claseaton ™ Gopicl uttays
treet (Gatro Street entranca), Pt{moulh, Indiana inmediately fo¥owing the Board Amount:  §$3,457,582.00
of Works meeting at 6:30 pm., Monday, June 8, 2025, will consider the f%owing | Fund Name: AIP 27 Reimbursement Grant
ndditional appropriation in excess ¢of the budgal for tha curtent year, Major Butget Classification:  Capital Outlays
Fund Name: General Am
Major Busget Classification.  Other Services & Charges Fund Name: Local R/Brdg March
Amount: $325,000.00 Major Budget Classification: Capital Outlays
Fund Name: General Amount: $ 663,403.00
Major Budget Classification.  Other Services & Charges Tapayers appearing al the meeting shall have a right to ba heard. The additional
Amount: $80,000.00  pppropriations as fnally made will ba refarred to the Department of Local Gowein.
Fund Name: Genaral yrent Finance (DLGF). Tre DLGF will make a writen determination as to the sufe
Major Budget Classification:  Other Senvees & Charges iciency of funds lo support the appropriation mace within fftean (1) days of re-
Amount §17,00000 LoptolaCertdied Copy ol the achon taken. Handicaspad citizens needing special
Fund Name: Ganeral pecommodations for the meeting, pleasa call the ADA Coordinalor, 574-936-2348.

Major By Classification.  Capital O Lynn Gorski, Clerk-Treasurer
G i . uumAmounL $70,000.00 May 30, 2025 -PN365728

ount: §100,000.00

ount: $181,976.00

Council members Longanecker and Krathwohl moved and seconded to open the public
hearing for the Additional Appropriations Resolution. The motion carried.
Clerk-Treasurer read aloud the additional appropriations advertised in the Pilot News. The
funds were listed as follows:
$325,000.00 — General — Financial Board — Other Services & Charges
Local Match for Heartland Art Center
$80,000.00 — General — City Properties — Other Services & Charges
Fire/Police Station Study
$17,000.00 — General — City Properties — Other Services & Charges
Fuel Monitoring for Warehouse
$70,000.00 — General — City Properties — Capital Outlays
Acquisition of ROW for Harrison Street Trail
$100,000.00 — Rainy Day Fund — Capital Outlays
Partial match for CCMG PW-24-024 Paving Project
$3,457,582.00 — AIP 027 Reimbursement Grant — Capital Outlays

Airport FAA Reimbursable Grant Amount



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

$181,978.00 — AIP 027 Reimbursement Grant — Capital Outlays
City’s portion of Airport FAA Grant

$663,403.00 — Local Rd/Brdg Match — Capital Outlays
CCMG PW-24-024 Paving Project

Longanecker asked if the $80,000 for the Fire/Police Station study was the same as what was
presented to them before. He believed there was some conversation about it being less than that.

Mayor Listenberger replied that they anticipate it being $40,000-$60,000 but they are putting
$80,000 in.

Gorski replied that $80,000 was being put in so she doesn’t have to another additional
appropriation if it goes up to $80,000.

Houin stated the revised proposal they got went down to $60,000 but they were looking at
other options that may be even less expensive.

Culp stated he was under the assumption that they were not taking any more money out of
Rainy Day.

Gorski replied this was $100,000 for the match for the paving projects that year. She stated in
future meetings there were some dormant funds that had been dormant for over a year that would be
put back into Rainy Day to make up for this.

Council Members Ecker and Longanecker moved and seconded to close the public hearing
for the Additional Appropriations Resolution. The motion carried.

Mayor Listenberger wished to address the unfortunate but necessary decision to close the
second story of the Red Rock Inn due to safety. He stated nobody had taken this decision lightly and
it had been a lot on our shoulders and appreciated everyone’s support in this. He stated that Building
Commissioner Dennis Manuwal was really taking heat for this. He stated there were 30 rooms up
there full of folks who would need help. He stated similarly how they responded to the Pointe
Apartments situation a year ago, they immediately went with a group of people and non-profits who
were willing to help. He stated our community was awesome in the way that they have stepped up
and he would like Barbara Holcomb to update them on this. He added that this morning the folks at
the Red Rock Inn had nowhere to go but now they had good news.

Holcomb explained after their 1:00 PM meeting at the United Way Office, a team of
volunteers went out to the Red Rock Inn to ascertain where they could find housing. She stated with
migrant workers coming in, the housing in Marshall County was limited so they had to go outside
the county. She stated they found that the Rochester Quality Inn had many and multiple rooms, so

they knew they were good there. She stated all the residents were waiting for them when they



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

showed up there and they were able to meet with all the residents. She stated they conducted
interviews with 26 adults and 4 children at the Red Rock Inn today. She stated that 6 people would
be staying with others at the Red Rock Inn, 9 people with 7 rooms were booked at the Rochester
Quality Inn, 5 people staying at the Days Inn, with 2 paying for themselves while the other three
were being paid for by Sister Connie for two rooms. She stated they found another room in South
Bend as the person works in South Bend, so they wanted to accommodate them, so they did not have
to drive as far. She stated that 5 individuals and 4 children were staying with friends or family. She
stated that Mr. Patel was paying for the Rochester facility, and the South Bend Motel. She stated that
all 30 of those individuals would be out of the Red Rock Inn that night. She stated that they would
be in secure/safe housing for at least a week and they would work a week at a time as people’s lives
change, and they did not want to pay too far ahead. She stated she had all their contact information
on various forms and on her spreadsheet so she would be in contact with them regularly to find out
what their plans were for the future and how they could move forward on that.

Longanecker asked if it was safe for folks to be walking under the balconies to go into the
rooms on the first floor.

Manuwal replied that was one reason why he had asked to have a structural engineer come
out and inspect the building as there were some major issues with the building. He stated he was not
going to say he was qualified enough to make that decision so that was why he had asked for a
structural engineer to make that decision. He explained that Mr. Patel stated at the meeting that he
had contacted somebody, so he was waiting to hear from them. He added that he did not take these
decisions lightly when he does this regardless of what Facebook says.

Plan Director Ty Adley introduced PC 2025-05, Certified Proposal to Amend the Official
Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth. He read aloud the Plan Commission case as follows and
presented his report.

PC 2025-05: HOLZWART GEORGE J JR & LINDA HOLZWART, 4589 Michigan Road,
Plymouth, IN 46563: An application to rezone the subject property from R-3, Traditional Residential

District to C-1, General Commercial District, on parcel 50-32-05-102-080.000-019, located at 1117
W. Madison Street, Plymouth, IN 46563, Zoned R-3, Traditional Residential District.

He stated this was sent with a favorable recommendation 9-0.

Culp asked if there were any responses to this request. Adley replied there were not.

Morrow asked if this would be grandfathered.

Adley replied when the entire city rezoned that this case was the latest in a list of a very long

line of fixes.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Council members Morrow and Krathwohl moved and seconded to approve PC 2025-05,

Certified Proposal to Amend the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth as presented. The

motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilman in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Krathwohl, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow and Starr

Councilman Opposed: N/A

CONSIDERATION OF PC 2026-05 BY.
THE PLYMOUTH COMMON COUNCIL,

This matter comes before the Plymouth Common Council on the Plymouth Plan
Commission's Certified Proposal to Amend the Olfficial Zoning Map for the City of
Plymouth. After certification, pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608(b) and Indiana
Code§ 5-14-1.5-5, public notice was provided of the Council's intention to consider the

Proposal at its regularly scheduled June 9, 2025 meeting Said meeting was conducted

and the Proposal has been considered pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608, giving
reasonable regard to: (1) the comprehensive plan; (2) current conditions and the
character of current structures and uses in each district; (3) the most desirable use for
which the land in each district is adapted, (4) the conservation of property values

the juri: ion; and (5) b and growth

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by lhe Common Council of the City of
Plymouth, Indiana as follows:

Sectlon 1, The Certified Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of
Plymoulh is adopted and, pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608(f)(1)(B)(2), upon
adoption, the Proposal takes effect as other ordinances passed by the Council.

Soction 2, Pursuant lo Indiana Code§ 36-7-4-610(c), a copy of the now adopted

amendments to the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth shall be map available
for public inspection in the office of the City of Plymouth Clerk-Treasurer.

PAS3ED AND ADOPTED this 9™ day of June, 2025

Robert Lis¥nbergér, Mayor
ATTEST:

(7%» C/é.;)&m,‘ﬂ

L M. GorsKi, Clerk-Treasurer

PC 2025-05

CERTIFIED PROPOSAL TO AMEND
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP

FOR THE
CITY OF PLYMOUTH
Statoment of Purpose and Intent

George Holzwart, Jr., as trustee of the Holzwart Family Trust, has requested
the rezoning of a parcel located at 1117 W. Madison Street, Plymouth, IN 46563,
Parcel No. 50-32-05-102-080.000-019, from R-3 Traditional Residential District to C-1
General Commorcial District. This proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map for
the City of Plymouth was presented to the Plymouth Plan Commission and the malter
was scheduled for a publc hearing on Tuesday, June 3, 2025, 7.00 p.m. at the
Piymouth Common Counci Chambers, with notice of sa'd hearing being published
pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-604 and Indiana Code § 5-3-1 el seq. A public
hearing on the malter was conducted on that date and time where, pursuant to Ind:ana
Code § 36-7-4-605, the Plymouth Plan Commission voted to approve the proposed
amendment Lo the zoning map and to give a favorable recommendalion

The purpose and intent of this document is to certify the proposed amendments
to the Zoning Ordnance for the City of Piymouth to the Piymouth Common Council for
its consideration,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Plymouth Plan Commission, as
follows:

Section 1, Pursuant to Indiana Code §§ 36-7-4-605, 608(b), the proposed amendment
to the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth is now certiied to the Plymouth
Common Council for consideration.

Saclion 2, The proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map for the City of
Piymouth Is as follows:

The parcel, containing approximately 0.34 acres and located at 1117 W. Madison

Street, being Parcel No. 50-32-05-102-080.000-019, from R-3 Traditional Residential
District to C-1 General Commercial District

SO CERTIFIED, BY THE PLYMOUTH PLAN COMMISSION

(.;,)Beacon‘” Marshall County, IN

W b ¢ 11
454 /. MRS NS
TT, " Tl
g 5 =

= z

.

Plan Director Ty Adley introduced PC 2025-06, Certified Proposal to Amend the Official

Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth. He read aloud the Plan Commission case as follows and
presented his report.

PC 2025-06: STONE JAMES ANDREW SARA MARIE H/W, 2280 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth,
IN 46563: An application to rezone the subject property from I, Industrial to R-4, Multi-Family
Residential District, on parcel 50-32-06-201-217.007-019, located at Lincoln Highway, Plymouth,
IN 46563, Zoned I, Industrial District. )



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

He stated this comes to the council with no recommendation. He explained that the first vote
came in at 5-4 to table the request, along with a vote for an unfavorable recommendation that came
in at 5-4. He stated as a point of reference, a commission of 11 required a majority vote of 6 to
secure a vote one way or another regardless of the number of individuals in attendance. He clarified
that the only decision before them that evening was to rezone that property as the project itself could
change drastically if it wished.

Sara Ford (310 Sumption Drive, Columbus, OH 43230)

Ford stated they were proposing a 50-unit multi-family project with a mix of 2—3-bedroom
units. She stated they would apply for funding for their project through the State Agency in July and
find out if they were awarded funding in November. She explained that they would need to be
awarded that funding in order for the project to move forward and if they were awarded that funding
then they would plan to start construction Summer of 2026 with competition being mid-2028. She
stated that Wallick would be the developer, general contractor (GC), owner, and management
company and they were a long-term owner/operator. She stated they would be managing the project
locally for a minimum of 15 years but most likely 30 years. She stated they take a lot of pride in the
developments that they make as they were not in the business of selling developments to whoever
wants to manage it. She stated they want to be ingrained and good partners in the community to
provide housing for those that need it. She explained that the project would be considered affordable,
but they would be serving individuals who make up to 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI)
which was around $75,000/year. She stated this would be serving the workforce of the community
with rents ranging from gross $620 to gross $1,400 so it would serve a wide range of individuals.
She added that their project would not be subsidized in any way as the individuals who live there
would be fully responsible for rent and not receive any government assistance in order to pay for
their rents. She stated that they did hear the concerns at the Planning Commission, and she
understood where residents were coming from, and she was happy to continue working with the city
and residents to address as many concerns as possible. She stated they were early in the planning
process, so they had a lot of time and flexibility to be able to make changes to their plans to address
as many concerns as possible. She stated that she attempted to highlight some of those concerns in
an email to the council but would be happy to further discuss any of those specifically.

Ecker thanked Ford for their interest in Plymouth. He asked her what drew Wallick to
Plymouth.

Ford replied that Wallick had a growing portfolio in the State of Indiana with 14 existing

assets across the State. She added that they were based out of Ohio, but they had been in Indiana for



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

over 15 years, and they would really like to grow in the state. She stated Plymouth was an area that
was really incentivized by the State Agency, and they set the stage where they believe housing was
most needed and really on the developer community to go into those communities and build those
partnerships to make the housing come to life. She stated one of the statistics she read was that over
20% of the rental community in the City of Plymouth was rent burdened or paying more than 30% of
their income to housing so she stated there was a strong need here for that affordable housing. She
stated aside from the small-town feel; there was also that population that needed housing in the
community. She stated they took pride in the projects that they make and wished to be good
neighbors.

Ecker asked for Longanecker and Milner’s input from the Plan Commission meeting.

Longanecker replied that it was always his concern about subsidized housing or low-income
housing and looking at this more, it was not that. He stated they were all aware of the concerns of
rental properties in the community. He listed their earlier conversations from the Board of Public
Works and Safety meeting regarding Northgate MHC, The Pointe Apartments, Red Rock Inn, etc.
He stated those were his high concerns still as they were all aware they needed housing, and they
must make that decision on what type of housing they believe was best for the community.

Milner stated they had a lot of higher end rentals and subsidized housing and finding
somewhere to meet in the middle was such a need in this area.

Culp stated he had been through this several times and he was told those rent estimates
before but that had totally changed after approval. He asked if those rent estimates would change and
he understood not holding them to that amount but $1,400 would be a higher end instead of backing
down the project to make it a lower end project.

Ford explained when they make their submission to the State Agency, they are locked in at
that point to whatever they are committed to. She stated one of the reasons why they decided to
expand that wider range of incomes and rents was because the State Agency incentivizes that and
allocate more points on the application if they elect to do that income skewing. She stated they
would not change it as they felt there was a need for all those different income brackets, but it would
also make their application more competitive, so it was a no brainer to elect those income bands and
stick to those rents moving forward. She stated to Culp’s point that they may change a little bit based
on what their market study comes back with. She stated if the study instructed them to reduce their
$1,400 to $1,350 that they would be able to make those small adjustments but in terms of the income
bands they were targeting, those would not change.

Culp asked for clarification that there would be no subsidiary funding. Ford agreed.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Morrow asked what other communities in Indiana did Wallick have properties in.

Ford replied that they had assets in Indianapolis, Franklin, Linton, Mitchell, etc.

Morrow asked for clarification that it was mostly in central and southern Indiana. Ford
agreed.

Longanecker asked for clarification that they were also in Michigan, Illinois, Ohio, North
Carolina, and South Carolina.

Ford replied in agreement and stated that they were also in Kentucky as well. She stated with
them being the GC as well that they wanted to ensure they were building with the highest quality
materials for market rate. She added that it would be Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design (LEED) Silver certified sustainable building materials to ensure they were constructing the
highest quality because they were the long-term manager with their staff on site managing
maintenance to ensure it was kept how it should be kept.

Longanecker asked if there was any intent on the design.

Ford replied that there was nothing nailed down as the State Agency sets the design
standards. She stated their exterior was typically vinyl, brick, or a mixture of both.

Mayor Listenberger allowed people to speak with a two-minute timeframe.

Bo Lutton (2312 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Lutton stated his property butts up to this property. He stated being a former law
enforcement officer he had done his research on this since last Tuesday. He stated the lot was not big
enough to maintain this development and there would be a negative impact on the surrounding
property values. He explained that he did not want to walk out his back door and look at apartment
buildings. He stated there was well documented research supporting the concern of rapid
introduction of high-density rental housing particularly in areas unprepared for the socio-economic
impact can contribute to increased crime rates. He stated he had spent most of this morning visiting
with the Plymouth Police Department pulling reports of recent developments that had happened over
the last two years. He stated the first one they pulled was Serenity Place down the road and in the
last two years since May 9, 2023, there had been 213 calls for service at that location and that was 2
calls per week that Law Enforcement and Fire/EMS were responding to. He stated the newest
development that had been built was Centennial Crossings and in the last two years they had 169
calls for service had been dispatched out there. He stated he was not in favor of this project.

Eric Knepper (2280 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Knepper stated similarly to Mr. Lutton they were neighboring the project as well. He

stated he did some research on Wallick himself and from the Better Business Bureau (BBB) there



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

were 52 total complaints in the last three years with 15 complaints closed in the last 12 months. He
stated tenants were being discriminated against for being disabled, veterans, etc. and looking at this
from the standpoint of purchasing this home within the last year that he was not aware that he would
be seeing apartments in his backyard. He stated crime comes with that and asked as a city why they
would want something to this standard to bring in for low-income housing. He stated with bordering
this property, he was not in favor of this project but if this was approved, he was asking the city to
put up a privacy fence to keep tenants out of their property.

Stephen Termunde (2400 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Termunde the first thing they did when they purchased their home was to go and see who
their neighbors would be. He stated you can’t always pick your neighbors, but they had some great
ﬁeighbox‘s and still do who they see every day and talk to them almost every day. He stated R-4 was
high density and they were talking about over 300 people who would move in and live there and at
the same time they were looking at a minimum of 100 cars with two per household. He stated they
had received nothing as far as studies and they were not aware of what was going on until a couple
of weeks ago. He explained it was not a perfect area with Ozinga across the street and some
industrial uses. He stated he was a regional manager for nine trailer park communities across the
State of Indiana, so he knows what that brings and what the opportunities were. He stated they heard
a lot of nothing today as there had been no studies about noise. He stated they couldn’t build a wall
high enough to block all that noise as it only takes a couple of motorcycles to be in misery. He stated
their nice little area which was only a few homes zoned Industrial would turn into something that he
was not looking forward to when he moved here to potentially retire.

Mark Keiser (2348 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Keiser stated in 1995 they purchased their house, and some great neighbors built their
houses around them. He stated they had enjoyed great peace, security, and very little trespassing and
his concern was that they were going to lose that now. He asked everyone if they were aware how
much a room at the Red Rock Inn costs per month. He replied that it was $800.

Stephanie Termunde (2400 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Termunde stated if this project did not get state funding that this property would
become subsidized housing and they do not even want what they were proposing here now. She
stated if it was subsidized housing that they would have to look at moving again because it was not a
situation that she would want to be in.

Mackenzie Lutton (2312 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Mrs. Lutton stated they made a point to say that someone would be living there to maintain
the buildings and Wallick had quite a few lawsuits against them for lack of care of maintenance for
all their property buildings. She stated they were well known for their low income and subsidized
housing in all the states that were listed. She stated what they were essentially building was
subsidized housing and she did not want that in her back yard.

Allison Keiser (2348 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Keiser stated they were told there had not been any traffic studies done and if they had
100 cars coming out of one entrance/exit to the apartment complexes on the top of the hill on
Jefferson Street was exactly where everyone hit the gas when leaving the city so traffic would
increase at that location. She stated she was not for this project, and they lived there for 29 years.
She stated it was a nice quiet peaceful location right on the edge of the city and they deforested the
whole lot already. She asked how that was going to protect the wetlands at the back of the property
as she had heard nothing about them at all. She stated that it was a part of that land they were selling
which was protected. She stated they would not even be able to build that section so it would be a lot
of people on a very little part of the property. She added that the builder got more than two minutes
to speak.

Kara Knepper (2280 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Knepper stated she originally came from Crown Point, and it had grown substantially
since she had been there and when she met her husband, they decided to leave that lifestyle and
moved into Mr. Stone’s previous house and it had been escape away from a large city feel. She
stated they just had twins so raising them in the backyard with apartment buildings and having to
worry about them constantly in their own backyard for their safety was her main concern.

Ed Langfelt (1980 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Langfeldt stated their company owned the building right next to the property, which was
the Fastenal Fulfillment Center, and they owned several buildings to the east of that. He stated they
were talking about rezoning this property from I, Industrial District to R-4, Multi-Family
Residential. He stated that when he built his building in 1980, it was vacant woods, and the area had
not developed too much until now. He stated Ozinga was there but the reason it may have all been
industrially zoned at the time was because of Transit Mix that started in 1947. He stated he was in
favor of the board considering changing that to R-4 as it was a good fit for the area if they did a good
job as far as building those apartments in there. He stated if it was left industrial then they could
have another transit mix across the street or a trucking company.

Lisa Langfelt (1980 W. Jefferson Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Ms. Langfeldt stated her father started their company back in 1985 and now they own and
operate Mr. Storage, three commercial properties, and they are lined up along Jefferson Street. She
stated in addition to that they have multiple storage facilities behind their office on Jefferson Street.
She stated that Ed Langfeldt developed Windmill Park and believed that Windmill Park was a
perfect example of a housing project done well and if they run the project right, keep the green
spaces, then they can have commercial property butting up against housing and have it very
successful. She stated that there was a lot of feedback when Serenity Place went in and it was not
positive, and they were concerned as storage operators with break-ins but that had not happened yet.
She stated it could be very successful, and the owner of this property was really concerned with
whom he partnered to sell his property to. She stated they were hoping for a successful relationship
with their partner next door.

Ford explained that she wished to address some of the concerns she heard. She stated that
this was not subsidized housing, and she could fully commit to that, but this was highly regulated
because they were receiving funding from the State Agency. She stated they were getting funding so
they could put equity into the project which would allow them to charge the lower rents, but it was
not subsidized. She stated because of that they would have numerous site visits and numerous
inspections from the State Agency, lenders, and equity providers so they would be coming out on a
regular basis to ensure that management was keeping the property how it needed to be kept. She
listed maintenance issues and if any of those things occurred, they would be dinged and have
repercussions with that State Agency so Wallick could not afford to let that happen. She
reemphasized that it would not be subsidized housing or the same population type as Serenity Place
as that was a concern that she had heard. She stated that they tried to be mindful when site planning
to tuck the project back as much as possible and keep a robust landscape buffer between their
buildings, Windmill Park Community, and single-family homes. She added they would not be
disturbing the wetlands in any way and that was indicated on the site plan as well. She stated they
were happy to explore the idea of adding a fence, but it was not added on the site plan. This was
preliminary so they would be happy to explore that idea if it would make the community feel better
about security. She stated there would also be exterior and interior security cameras at the property.

Krathwohl asked Adley what made a property subsidized housing compared to what they
were describing currently.

Adley replied that the subsidized portion was where the company would receive checks in

relationship to accommodating portions of rent.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Ford stated the main difference between subsidized and what they were proposing was that a
subsidized community pay only up to 30% of their income. She stated if they were making no
income then they would pay nothing and then the federal government or the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) would pay that rent. She stated at their property, that was
not the case as they had to income qualify just as you would at any market rate property. She stated
if they could not afford the rent for one month, then there would be no HUD coming to pay that for
them. She explained that the people living on their property would be fully responsible for their rent
payments while HUD was responsible for a subsidized property.

Mayor Listenberger stated they would not be voting on the project itself but rather voting on
rezoning the property.

Krathwohl asked if this was denied that night and someone came back in with a different
plan then it could still be brought to them.

Adley replied in agreement and stated if it was denied that it would stay industrial. He listed
the example of foresting and logging as it was a use of the district currently, so the property owner
was fiee to cut trees from their property like any other cropping.

Morrow asked if it was possible for them to approve the zoning contingent upon the success
of grant award.

Adley replied that it was not like a variance where the ability to revert was simple.

Morrow stated it wouldn’t really be reverting as they would not be making a change until
project approval.

Adley replied that part of their project being approved through the state was getting a letter
authorizing that their use was available. He stated they would have to either get proper zoning or
proper variances in order to have their project go forward. He explained if the zoning was not in line
before they put their application in then it may as well result as a zero score.

Houin stated that they could not create a contingent zoning classification that did not already
exist within the current zoning ordinance.

Adley stated they could talk about this project in length but tonight the only decision before
them was whether this property should be I, Industrial or R-4, Multi-Family Residential.

Krathwohl stated her concern was the traffic on an already busy street.

Longanecker stated it was an argument both ways if more semi-trucks go in and out of there.

Ecker stated he looked at this and talked to several people and believed this was a good fit.
He stated they need quality homes, and he liked that it was market rate and that the site plan was

good.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

Culp asked Mr. Lutton about his comparison to Serenity Place with how many times
emergency services had been there in the past six months because that was addressed by the police
and fire department. He did not believe it was a good comparison.

Mr. Lutton stated he served in Elkhart County and worked the midnight shift. He stated most
of his calls were on apartment complexes. He stated that was why when he went to the city, he only
pulled reports on four of them and how many calls for service were at these. He stated the ones that
were just built, Centennial Crossings, received 167 calls for service. He stated according to
Construction Management & Design (CMD) they were market rate apartments still accepting
vouchers for subsidized housing and he confirmed that with them today. He stated even Westgate
Apartments had 115 calls in the last two years. He stated that River Gate Apartments was managed
by an out-of-state company as well and they received 37 calls in the last two years, and the siding
was falling off all over the building. He stated the association was that high-density draws more
crime and he did not want that in his backyard.

Council members Ecker and Longanecker moved and seconded to approve PC 2025-06,
Certified Proposal to Amend the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth as presented. The
motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilman in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow and Starr

Councilman Opposed: Krathwohl

CONSIDERATION OF PC 2025-06 BY. PGC 2025-08
THE PLYMOUTH COMMON COUNCIL, CERTIFIED PROPOSAL TO AMEND
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
This malter comes before the Plymouth Common Council on the Plymouth Plan FOR THE
Commission’s Certified Proposal to Amend the Official Zoning Map for the City of CITY OF PLYMOUTH
Piymoulh. After cerlification, pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608(b) and Indiana
Code§ 5-14-1.5-5, public notice was provided of the Council's intention to consider the Statement of Purpose and Intont
Proposal at its regularly scheduled June 9, 2025 meeting. Said meeting was conducted T TLCH i — —
Proposal has b i d o In 7-4-608, givin; fallck Asset Managemen as requested the rezoning of a parcel locate
anciliaipropasal hssboonic e to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608, giving |\ 1o o0 Piymouh, IN 46563, Parcel No. 50.3.06.901-2 7 007-010,
reasonable regard to: (1) the comprehensive plan; (2) current conditions and the bty
) \ ( 1 d % h distri th d bl f from | Industrial District to R-4 Multi-Family Residental District. This proposed
character of current structures and uses in each district, (3) the most desirable use for 5 ondment to the Official Zoning Map for the City of Piymouth was presented to the
which the land in each district is adapted; (4) the conservation of property values Piymouth Plan Commission and the matter was scheduled for a public hearing on
gl the jurisdiction; and (5) resp devel and growth. Tuesday, June 3, 2025, 7.00 p.m. al the Plymouth Common Council Chambers, with

natice of said hearing being published pursuant to Indiana Codo § 36-7-4-604 and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Council of the City of  Indiana Code § 5-3-1 et seq A public hearing on the matter was conducted on that
Piymouth, Indiana as follows date and time where, pursuant to Indana Code § 36-7-4.605, the Plymouth Plan
’ Commission voted 5-4 to deny the proposed amendment However, because did not

The Certified Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of represent a majority of Plan Commission members, it resulted in no recommendation.
Section 1 i

Piymouth is adopled and, pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-608(f)(1)(B)(2), upon The purpose and intent of this decument Is to certify the proposed amendments
adoption, the Proposal takes effect as other ordinances passed by the Council to the Zoning Ordnance for the City of Piymouth to the Plymouth Common Council fer
its consideration

Scction 2, Pursuant to Indiana Code§ 36-7-4-610(c), a copy of the now adopted
amendments lo the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth shall be map available

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Piymeuth Plan Commission, as
for public inspection in the office of the City of Piymouth Clerk-Treasurer. ™

follow:

Pursuant to Indiana Code §§ 36-7-4-605, 608(b). the proposed amendment
to the Official Zoning Map for the City of Plymouth is now certifed to the Plymouth
PAS3BED AND ADOPTED this 9" day of June, 2025 Common Counci for consideration,

Saclion 2, The proposed amendment to the Official Zoning Map for the City of
Piymouth is as follows:

The parcel, 9 10 53 acres and di ibed more p y on
the attached Exhibit A, located on W, Jefferson Street, being Parcel No. 50-32-06-201-
217.007-019, from I Industrial District to R-4 Multi-Family Residential District

ATTEST:

?/LQ//C /;Yj,ua

,L{ﬁn M. Gorski, Clerk-Treasurer

SO CERTIFIED, BY THE PLYMOUTH PLAN COMMISSION

Exhibit A
Legal Doscription

LOT B AS SHOWN ON STONE'S JEFFERSON STREET MINOR
SUBDIVISION RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT No. 202205018 WITH
THE OFFICE OF THE RECOROER OF MARSHALL COUNTY,

SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD,



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

TAX AU 610G FEGHT
CHESTREET PARKNG

PLYMOUTH FAMILY | PLYMOUTH, INDIANA | CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN DL
ST RSERSERI AR eunme (9 W waniek
- | T e ARCHITECTS

i deinsly e

Plan Director Ty Adley introduced PC 2025-07, Certified Proposal to Amend the Zoning

Ordinance for the City of Plymouth. He read aloud the Plan Commission case as follows and

presented his report.

PC 2025-07: Plymouth Plan Commission, 124 N. Michigan Street, Plymouth, IN 46563: An
Amendment to the following:

Article 3 C-2 Downtown Commercial
Minimum Lot Size: from 0.5 acres to 1,200 square feet
Minimum Lot Width: from 150’ to 20’
Minimum Lot Frontage: from 50’ to 20’

Article 3 R-3 Traditional Residential
Permitted Residential Uses:
Add: Two Family Residential
Special Use Residential Uses:
Remove: Two-Family Residential
He stated this was sent with a favorable recommendation 9-0.
Council members Krathwohl and Longanecker moved and seconded to approve PC 2025-07,
Certified Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Plymouth as presented. The

motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilman in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Krathwohl, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow and Starr

Councilman Opposed: N/A



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

CONSIDERATION OF PC 2025-07 BY
IHEPLYMOUTH COMMON COUNCIL

This matter comes before the Piymouth Common Council on the Piymouth Plan
Commission's Certified Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of
Piymouth, After certfication, pursuant to Indiana Code§ 36-7-4-607(e)(l) and Indana
Code§ 6-14-1.5-5, publc notice was provided of the Council's intention to consider the
Proposal atits regularly scheduled June 9, 2025 meeting. Said meeting was conducted
and the Proposal has been considered pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-603, giving
reasonable regard to: (1) the comprehensive plan; (2) current conditons and the
character of current structures and uses in each district; (3) the most desirable use for
wvihich the land in uach district is adapted; (4) the conservation of property values

9l the j , and (5) and growth,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Council of the City of
Plymouth, Indiana as follows

The Certified Proposal lo Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of
Plymouth is adopted and, pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-607(e)(2), upon adoption,
the Proposal lakes effect as other ordinances passed by the Council
Soclion 2, Pursuant to Indiana Code§ 36-7-4-610(b), a copy of the now adopted

di to the Zoning Ordi for tha City of Plymouth shall be printed and a
copy thereof shall be located in the office of the City of Plymouth Clerk-Treasurer.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9™ day of June, 2025
Rohﬂe%m%. Presiding Officer

ATTEST.

‘/g/r..,,,/})v)ﬁfuﬂ

Lynf M. Gorski, Clerk-Treasurer

Presented by me to the Maycr of the City of Piymouth, Indiana on the '/
oJune 2025, a1 o'dlock o m

.
oraf
Lﬁ’m Gorskl, Clerk-Treasurer

4 dayol__Snae 2025

Minimum Lot Frontage:
* 60 Feet 20 Foot

day of

Approved and signed by me this

PC 2025-07

CERTIFIED PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE
FOR THE
CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Statemont of Purpose and Intont

On March 11, 2024, the Piymouth Common Council adopted a Rcso!uhon to
Establish a Comp Plan Advisory Ci Since then, a of
the Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee has been meehng regularly to review the
Plymouth Zonlng O and { or possible

to the zoning ordinance to ach'eve the goals outlined in the Plymomh Forward 2040
Comprehensive Plan.

The Zoning Subcommittee has received information from the Plymouth Planning
Director regarding certain standards required by the Plymouth Zoning Ordinance that
are inconsistent with the Piymouth Forward 2040 Comprehensive Plan, After review,
the certain to the Plymouth Zoning
Ordinance. Based upon these recommended changes, the Plan Commission initiated
this Proposal to Amend the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Plymouth, pursuant to
Indiana Code§§ 36-7-4-601, 602, 603.

The Plan Commission scheduled a public hearing on the proposed amendments
on Tuesday, June 3, 2025, 7:00 p.m. al the Plymouth Common Council Chambers, with
notice of said hearing being published pursuant to Indiana Code § 36-7-4-604 and
Indiana Gude § 5-3-1 of seq. At the public hearing, the proposal was discussed, with the
Commission hearing input from Planning Director Ty Adley, and pursuant to Indiana
Code § 36-7-4-605, the Commission voted to appmw the pvoposed amendments to
the Zoning Ord:nance for the City of Plym , giving the p its
favorable recommendation

The purpose and intent of this document is to certify the proposed amendments
to the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Plymouth to the Plymouth Common Council for
its consideration

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Plymouth Plan Commission, as follows:

Sogtion 1, Zoning Ordmance Article J Standard Zoning District Intent, Uses, &
C-20 District, shall be as follows:

Min'mum Lot Area:
* .5 Acres 1,200 Square Feet

Min'mum Lot Width
* 150 Feet 20 Feot

Saction 2, Zoning Ordmun.c Altn.!a 3 Standard Zoning Districts Intent, Uses, &
Standards. R-3 -

follows:

Residential Uses
Accessory Struclure

Home Occupation
Modular Home

Single Family Residential
Two Famlly Resldoential

Manufactured Home - Type B

Disteict, Pormittod Usos, shall be amended as

Child Day Care Services (in home)

Section 3, Zoning Ovd nance, Alfvclo 3 Standard Zoning Districts Intent, Uses, &
 R-3 T District, Special Uses, shall be amended as

follows:

Special Uses

* Assisted Living Facility
Group Home

Home Bases Business
Two-family residential
Multi-Family Residential

s o e

Soctlon §, Pursuant to Indiana Code §§ 36-7-4-605, 607(c), after determining its

to the Zoning Ordinance for the

City of Plymouth, set forth i in Ihe ultachn\enl are now certified to the Plymouth

Common Council for consideration

SO CERTIFIED, BY THE PLYMOUTH PLAN COMMISSION

Clerk-Treasurer Gorski explained that the city had received six donations: The first three

donations in the amount of $1,250.00/each from ARC Security LLC, Plymouth Kings Buffet Inc.,

and the Fraternal Order of Police 195 to be used for Police Vehicle Sponsorships. The next

donations are all in the amount of $1,000.00/each from Pregis Innovative Packaging LL.C, Plymouth

Kings Buffet, and First Federal Savings Bank to be used for the Mayor’s Summer of Music. She

asked if they wished to accept the donation with the restricted terms, conditions, and purpose

attached to the donation. She added the donations would be receipted into the Monetary Gift Fund.

Council members Longanecker and Krathwohl moved and seconded to approve the

donations as presented. The motion carried.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

City Attorney Houin introduced Resolution No. 2025-1159, A Resolution of the City of
Plymouth Declaring Certain Real Estate to be Within an “Economic Revitalization Area” Pursuant
to I.C. 6-1.1-12.1 et. seq. (Hoosier Racing Tire Corp.)

Greg Hildebrand of Marshall County Economic Development Corporation (MCEDC) stated
this was a $16.8 million investment into personal property. He stated this was the prequel or
beginning of a larger expansion. He explained this machinery would go into service before the rest
of the expansion with 447 jobs being retained. He stated there were no new jobs but that would be
coming in future steps.

Council members Longanecker and Starr moved and seconded to approve Resolution No.
2025-1159, A Resolution of the City of Plymouth Declaring Certain Real Estate to be Within an
“Economic Revitalization Area” Pursuant to I.C. 6-1.1-12.1 et. seq. (Hoosier Racing Tire Corp.) as
presented. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilman in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Krathwohl, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow and Starr

Councilman Opposed: N/A

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-1159

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH
DECLARING CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO BE
WITHIN AN “ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION AREA”
PURSUANT TO I.C. 6-1.1-12.1 ot. seq.
(Hoosier Racing Tire Corp.)

WHEREAS, the Stale of Indiana has provided for personal propeity tax

ions for the 1} ion of of real property located in
economic revitalization areas, as defined pursuant to Indiana Code § 6-1.1-12.1-
1elseq.; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Indiana Code § 6-1.1-12 1.2, the Common
Council 01 mo City of Plymouth may find that a particular area within the city is an
area as by statute; and,

WHEREAS, Hoosier Racing Tire Corp. has petitioned the Common
Council to find a certain tract of real estate to be declared an economic

c. the estimated total compensation package of those Indlvkiuals who
will be employed within the areais
and,

d the totalty of the capital is to justify
the deslgnalod real estate an economic revitalzation area and thereby
ions in with state law.

Section 2. The real estate described in the altached Exhibit ‘A’ is real eslate
within the corporate Imits of the City of Plymouth, Indiana, and is hereby
declared to be an economic revitalization area as defined in Indiana Code § 6-
1.1-12.1-1, el. seq., and is eligible for from the

value of proposed real property improvements

Section 3. The applicant's Statement of Benefits is hereby approved, subject to
a confirmatory resolution, to be adopted by this Council after a public hearing.

Scction 4. This if ion shall be to a public hearing to
be convened on the 23'¢ day of June, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. (or immediately after the
Board of Public Works and Safety meeting on the same date) in the Council

City Hall, 124 N. Michigan St. (Garro St. Entrance, Second Floor), as

revnallzalmn area as defined because the parcel has become for, or
possible of, normal I and of a lack of pmvnded by law.
| of gvvwlh of character of occupancy, and
other factors which have d values and p the normal

of the properly and its use; and,

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Ply h, after

Section 5. The Common Council's asan italizati

area the real estate described in Exhibit “A” shall terminate after a public hearing
held by the Comnmn Council in acoordauca \Nh applicable law, if the applicant
fails 1o the or create and maintain

the application of Hoosier Racing Tire Corp., and after hearing evidence thereon
has determined that the tract of real estate does in fact lie within the corporate
limits of the City of Piymouth as descnbed in Ihe altached Exhibit “A*, and the
same should be desi an i areain with
Indiana Code § 6-1.1-12.1-1 through and including Indiana Code § 6-1.1-12.1-6.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of
Plymouth, Indiana, as follows:

Section 1. After idering the evi p d at a public meeting on June
, 2025

a. the esti of | property i
reasonable for projects of this nature; and,

of $16,800,000.00 is

b, the number of to be retained of
447 with the i isa jection; and,

the level of employment related benefits descnbed in the Statements of Benefils.
Hoosier Racing Tire Corp.'s City of Plymouth Application for Tax Abatement is
incorporated herein by reference.

Scction 6. The Clerk-Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed lo make all
necessary filings, to cause to be published all notices required by law, and to
notify the appropriate officers of each taxing unit that has authority to levy
property taxes in the geographical area within which the real estate described in
Exhibit *A" is located, all as provided by state law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Comchnl

Roberéist 0199/, Presiding Olficer

" day of June, 2025.

ATTEST:

7};}6://)7%,(’ Lok

LyfR M’ Gorski, Clerk-Treasurer




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

EXHIBITB - Legal Desctipticn aad Map
Apartof the Southeast Quarter of Sectlon 31, Tewnship 34 Nonth, Ranga 2 East, City of Piymouth,
Marshall County, Indiana deseribed as follows:

‘Commencing ot tho Southwost comer of Lot Ho, 2in PIDCO Industriol Subdivision, located in eald
Sectlon 315 thence South 0 degrees 02 minutes 32 seconds East along the East Une of PIDCO Dilva
i ! inutes 31 soconds East 207.00 feet to tho
paint of beginning; thy Soutl Y 31 snconds East 249 42 feetto
1he Wost Lno of the Wnitley PIoducts, Inc. parcel (ecorded In Leed KECord 1Y/ /, Mage bizes, UTce
of! o County ) 19 svconds West 300 00 foet
10the Southwest cornet of said Whiltey Products, Inc. parcel, on the North Une of PIDCO Dikvo;
thence North 89 degrees 59 minutes 31 seconds Wost slong sald North line a distance of 249.17
feat; thence North 0 degrees 02 minutes 32 seconds West 300.09 feet to the polnt ol beginnlng.

City Attorney Houin introduced Resolution No. 2025-1160, A Resolution for Additional
Appropriations.

Council members Longanecker and Starr moved and seconded to approve Resolution No.
2025-1160, A Resolution for Additional Appropriations. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilman in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Krathwohl, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow and Starr

Councilman Opposed: N/A

RESOLUTION NO. 20251160

RESOLUTION FOR ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS

WHEREAS, it bay been determeed that it is pow pecennary bo spfevpeate mote moncy
D4 s agprogriated in e anseal balget, s, thercfere

Sec 1 ie tresolved by e Comamon Councl of the City of Fymcuth, Mansball Cossty,
Ieduasa, that for the expemses of the Laving wad the follrm g A0l tum of ey f ety
appevprised vt of the fusds ramed snd for 1he purpune specilied, subject 1 1he bims ponetning
the same:
AMOUNT
AMOUNT APEOMED Y
REQUESTID HSCAL DODY

FedNmg Geserad - Fresmcinl Geaed el Mach
Mot Badpet Canniticanon Ot S & Chosges
TOTAL for Ot Setva e & Charges

Y]
3 ot

ol Buwe. Giereral - ity Progertios Contont Svey

Mujee Batyet Clisafionmen Oer Sves & Crarges 0000 03 Moo co
TOTAL for Orber Services & Chars ¥ 000 00 000 00

Pt N, Oerenal - Coty Progertes RepaisTaber

Mier Dyt Clissaficaton Ocbet Sves & Chargen 1om
TOTAL for (bt Sarvces & Ovarge 17,000 01
—0,

Lund Kame Gerenal - City Propteties Acqaivtion

Muee It Clas faton. Copatal Outlays e M@
TOTAL for Copits! Ouatiyy I Ta0m )
Band N Kby Dy Fend

Mugec Bt Claos ficaton Cagtal Outlagy 10360 00 100000
TOTAL for Copital Outays 1000500
Ll Name. AL 027 Reimbursoment Grast

Mygse Dodiet Clasficaton. Cagetal Outlays EXITRLPTT) 1437880 0
TOTAL for Capital Outtays 14313800 143730200
Fud Mumt, AP 627 Rebmborsement Grost

Magot Dot Clarufiation Cigetsd Outleyy AT

TOIAL fov Cagtad Outliys

1157400

Ded Name Locd RS Hadg Match

Majet Bedyt Clannfiaton Capetd Outliyy @i w 1 m
TOIAL fe Cogetal Dty ) anm )
—— ) e 2IN00,

Faed and adogiod thos Y18 duy of Jus, 2023

4.4 X (i/‘r[.

LA M Gonli
ek Trewce



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, June 9, 2025

City Attorney Houin stated there was no update on ONE Marshall County.

Plan Director Ty Adley stated there was no update on the Comprehensive Plan Committees.

Council members Ecker and Longanecker moved and seconded to accept the following
communications:

e  Minutes of the Board of Public Works and Safety meeting of May 27, 2025
June 9, 2025 Check Register

May 27, 2025 Technical Review Committee Minutes

May 27, 2025 Fire Pension Board Minutes

April 7,2025 Park Board Minutes

May 5, 2025 Park Board Minutes

April 1, 2025 Plan Commission Commission Minutes

May 6, 2025 Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes

The motion carried.
There being no further business to come before the Council, Council members Longanecker

and Milner moved and seconded to adjourn. Mayor Listenberger declared the meeting adjourned at

9:05 p.m.
,Lrﬁny M. Gorski
Clerk-Treasurer
APPROVE/? )

7

Robert Listenberger, Mayor




